Minutes of the meeting of the **SCRUTINY (POLICY AND PERFORMANCE) COMMITTEE** held at the Council Offices, Whitfield on Tuesday, 3 July 2018 at 6.00 pm.

Present:

Chairman: Councillor K Mills

- Councillors: M I Cosin P I Carter B Gardner (as substitute for Councillor D A Sargent) P J Hawkins (as substitute for Councillor J M Heron)
- Officers: Director of Environment and Corporate Assets Director of Finance, Housing and Community Head of Regulatory Services Environmental Protection Manager Principal Community and Leisure Officer Principal Infrastructure and Delivery Officer Democratic Services Manager

11 <u>APOLOGIES</u>

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors T A Bond, R J Frost, J M Heron, M J Ovenden and D A Sargent.

12 <u>APPOINTMENT OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS</u>

It was noted that in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 4, Councillors B Gardner and P J Hawkins had been appointed as substitute members for Councillors D A Sargent and J M Heron respectively.

13 <u>DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST</u>

There were no declarations of interest made by Members.

14 <u>MINUTES</u>

The consideration of the Minutes was deferred.

15 PUBLIC SPEAKING

The Democratic Services Manager advised that no members of the public had registered to speak on items on the agenda to which the public speaking protocol applied.

16 DECISIONS OF THE CABINET RELATING TO RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE SCRUTINY (POLICY AND PERFORMANCE) COMMITTEE

There were no items of business for consideration.

17 <u>ISSUES REFERRED TO THE COMMITTEE BY COUNCIL, CABINET, SCRUTINY</u> (COMMUNITY AND REGENERATION) COMMITTEE OR ANOTHER COMMITTEE

There were no items of business for consideration.

18 ITEMS CALLED-IN FOR SCRUTINY OR PLACED ON THE AGENDA BY A MEMBER OF THE COMMITTEE, ANY INDIVIDUAL NON-EXECUTIVE MEMBERS OR PUBLIC PETITION

There were no items of business for consideration.

19 NOTICE OF FORTHCOMING KEY DECISIONS

The Democratic Services Manager presented the Notice of Forthcoming Key Decisions to the Committee for its consideration.

Members enquired about when the Planning Enforcement Plan would be coming forward for consideration.

RESOLVED: That the Notice of Forthcoming Key Decisions be noted.

20 SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME

The Democratic Services Manager presented the Scrutiny Work Programme to the Committee for its consideration.

RESOLVED: That the Work Programme be noted.

21 <u>PUBLIC SPACES PROTECTION ORDER</u>

The Head of Regulatory Services presented the report on the Public Spaces Protection Order.

Members were advised that following the consultation relating to dog control orders authorised by Cabinet in March 2018, the Council had received 179 responses, the majority of which were supportive, especially of the continued exclusion of dogs from children's play areas.

The main area of objection was in respect of the proposal to exclude dogs from the sports pitches behind Tides Leisure Centre in Deal. This area was included because it was believed regular football matches were played there but a number of responses pointed out that the area was rarely used for football and that it provided for a safe enclosed area to walk dogs in middle Deal and was very popular with dog walkers. As a consequence, the proposal to exclude dogs from this area was therefore withdrawn.

The consultation had also received a number of responses relating to the times that dogs were permitted on beaches. It was felt that the current times struck a balance between dog walkers and beach users.

RESOLVED: That the report be noted.

22 <u>TIDES LEISURE CENTRE</u>

The Director of Environment and Corporate Assets presented the report on Tides Leisure Centre.

Members were advised that Tides Leisure Pool was opened in 1987 and due to its age was likely to require significant capital investment over the coming years. If the

required investment was not made then there was an increased risk of frequent or permanent pool closure because a number of essential plant items were reaching end of life.

The Cabinet had agreed to approve £710,000 from the Tides Leisure Centre Refurbishment Project included in the Medium-Term Financial Plan as followed:

- £600,000 for urgent plant refurbishment works to address essential maintenance issues at Tides;
- £10,000 to support the next stage of project development through further investigation of preferred options for wet and dry leisure facilities; and
- £100,000 provision to meet the cost of any emergency works that arose while the preferred options were being investigated.

In respect of the new Dover District Leisure Centre, it was stated that this would complement the offer at Tides not compete with it.

Members discussed the car parking arrangements for Tides, including the need to protect it for users of Tides and avoid people parking there to avoid paying for parking elsewhere. The Director of Environment and Corporate Assets advised Members that this issue was being looked at by officers.

RESOLVED: That the report be noted.

23 <u>SHORT-TERM PROPOSAL FOR THE FORMER CO-OP BUILDING, CASTLE</u> <u>STREET, DOVER</u>

The Director of Finance, Housing and Community presented the report on the Short Term Proposal for the Former Co-Op Building, Castle Street, Dover.

Members were advised that it was the intention to use the former Co-Op building as a temporary 'Mean-While' space to provide an area to enable entrepreneurs and new businesses to market test their products/services. This would also enhance the Council's strategic support for the High Street and Regeneration of the area while ensuring that the Council secured the future ownership of a strategic site.

Members were advised that Dover Big Local and Red Zebra would be responsible for the project.

RESOLVED: That the report be noted.

The meeting ended at 6.48 pm.